

Hawkinsville, A Thriving Community In 1855

Several factories, three churches, three schools, two hotels, four blacksmith shops and a live community spirit made up the village of Hawkinsville

Bustling Village Fades To Hamlet With One Mill

Once Bright Prospects for Growth Changed With Construction of Railroad, West of Section

By MRS. LENA M. SCHEIDLEMAN

Boonville, Oct. 11 .- A busy, thriving, industrial town, with prospects for a bright future was Hawkinsville, shown in the picture solidated and school was held in Vienneau, student council; class Principal and Mrs. Kaskela atabove taken about 1855, but the course of the Black River Railroad the Mechanics Hotel for a year adviser, Mr. Kaskela. completely changed the picture.

Hawkinsville in the early days was larger than Boonville and was built in 1885. This building had every prospect of growing steadily, until the railroad was built year ago, two teachers were emthrough Boonville, leaving Hawkinsville entirely off its course. Grad- ployed, each having four grades, secretary and treasurer; Janice Mildred Reynolds. ually the mills closed until now the little hamlet can boast of but but since many are being trans- Markham and Elizabeth Taylor, Mr. and Mrs. Charles Parkhurst

FACTORIES ONCE MADE THRIVING VILLAGE

Hawkinsville was settled in 1824 on Black River. The next year and by his son, Oscar Hayes; latthey built a grist mill and about er, Arthur Joslin and then Arthur kinsville were Joseph Hull sr. and 1832 a carding mill and a fulling Lahah ran the store until it was mill. It was not an unusual sight bought by William Cannon. This stretched on the frames to dry, the carries general merchandise. frames reaching from 75 to 100 road from the mill at the right hotels, two saloons on the bank tin. an eccentric character. In 1869 the saw mill was carried away by a fracket

the property of Mrs. Mae Heven- buildings are still standing. The er, Hawkinsville, is a chair fac- Mechanics Hotel was built by Herbert R. Tubbs, Miss Carrie tory on the opposite bank of the river where chairs and tables were manufactured and disposed of in Manufactured and disposed were made of maple and the ta- Frank Murray of Schenectady who were: Mrs. L. Charbonneau, Miss bles of birch, and cherry, all ob- now has a summer home tained from nearby forests.

A tram railroad ran from the

Was Called Slab City established in the neighborhood of 11 years, and who is now a prom- as appointed first postmaster. The ited in Hawkinsville last week, his as trustee and Jerome F. Hilts. village was called "Slab City" be- first visit in 56 years.

The only industry in the town at present is the excelsior mill, located on the site of the old grist mill. D. C. West of Lowville built the mill and about 15 years later, er, bought the mill and built a

About eight hands are employed here in making excelsior which is shipped to various points within besides the leach house, engine Mrs. mainly in packing, for matresses, filtration in glue factories.

Three Churches Flourished used as a community church. The leather was manufactured exclu- There will be a donkey basket-German Catholic Church, located sively and sold principally in ball game at the West Leyden at the western end of town, was New York and Boston, Power was Central School Tuesday evening built about 1860; it has not been furnished by Cummings Creek, al- October 17 at 8 o'clock. The memand steeple still stand as a symbol bank of Black River. At the upper and the bus drivers will play of bygone days. There was also a right of the picture, can be seen against the men faculty members odist Episcopal Society was organ- by canal while others were drawn ized in 1860 but the society had by team to New York. no church edifice, so the meetings In connection with the tanner

The first regular store was house is where the Anderson's -Advertisement,

by Sterry Hawkins, David Porter built and opened by Whitman and Moses Johnson, who, as part- Buck about 1847; this store was ners, built a sawmill and a dam later operated by Daniel Hayes

> Old Hotel is Remodeled The village at one time had two

The hotels were the Union Ho-Hawkinsville.

to the bank of the Black River for many years. It is now owned Miss Florence Burr and Miss where the lumber, was and occupied as a dwelling by Grace McGinis, Mr. and Mrs. Henry Wingert. Mr. | An old program of closing ex-Munz's youngest son, Charles, who ercises held in Union Hall Feb. The Hawkinsville post office was left Hawkinsville at the age of 17, 1888, gave Herbert R. Tubbs 1850 and Sterry Hawkins was inent lawyer in Denver, Col., vis- fith as assistant; C. Eli Joslin

Among some of the fore the post office was established. This name originated, it is which can be easily recognized pupils who entertained with recibelieved, on account of the large are Highland Lodge, the Zwahlen tations and songs were: May and amount of slab wood turned out farm and the Shanks residence at Madge Potter, Arthur Joslin, Carat the mill, and of the road from the extreme left foreground; this rie Wood, Louis O'Leary, Ella

Tannery Bullt in 1852 recalled by other residents, was Murta river, of which only two buildings Charles Throp and Charles Grifare standing. It was here that the fith, Eureka Tannery was built in 1852 William Anderson and later owned and operated by his son.

industry is a long depression and Mrs. Charles G. Ernst. and a small portion of a wall of daughter, Margaret visited rela-

in its original form and hemlock bark were used.

ued in many years, but the walls though the tannery stood on the bers of the Board of Education Protestant Church, the Anderson store house where which was later torn down and re- the hides were stored before bemoved to Port Leyden. The Meth- ing shipped. Many were shipped

were held in the schoolhouse until and built near it, was a large Without Calend-And You'll Jump Out of Bed in in 1882, when the present church boarding house, eleven tennant was built and is now used as a houses, a home for the superinten-

when this picture was taken 84 years ago. The place had bright prospects of becoming the largest village in the Town of Boonville until the Black River

Constableville.

Freshmen class: Leonard Gaw-

lived, then one of the show places of the village with a white picket fence around it. It now stands alone with only a few stately elms around it; once it was in the midst

Three Schools Built

of a lively settlement.

In the neighborhood were three schools, one near the church, shown in the picture, one near where the Seiter camps now are, class officers for the Constable- and Mrs. George Freeman. and the other near the tannery, ville Central School have been There were about eighty children elected for the coming year: Sen- turned home after a visit with in each of the two schools and ion class, Robert Anken, president; relatives in Fabius and Cazenovia. about sixty in the other, with Leslie Felshaw, vice-president; only one teacher in each school. Bernard Dolan, secretary and were Sunday dinner guests of Mr. About 1884, the schools were con- treasurer; Ruth Bassett and Roger and Mrs. Harold Hughes in Utica. until the present Union School is still in use and up to about a president; Ruth Kraeger, vice- Mrs. Agnes Latham of Roches-

Mrs. Wendt. one teacher is now engaged. The cheese factories were oper- Sophomore class: Harold Long, ated by William Sperel, on the president; Mary Wynne, vice-pres- hurst. river road by Cold Brook. In later ident; Dorothy Crane, secretary; lor and Francis Kelly,

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Hull jr. and likoski, president; Ray Puchyr, mill. It was not an unusual sight bought by William Cannon. This to see yards and yards of cloth is the only store in the village and with the junior Hulls from Killingsworth, Conn., the men having student council, Shirley McConcome to work in the sawmill. Miss Grey and the senior Mr. Hull were married. They were the

Shown in the picture, which is tel and the Mechanics Hotel. Both ion School from 1885 to 1895 in adviser, Mr. Finnegan. the advanced department were:

New York City. Ten hands were ed by Mr. and Mrs. Walter C. sidy, W. Jay Andrews, Miss Let- cil; class adviser, Miss Hnatt. employed and the annual business Brant and is now one of the most tie Smith, Miss Joanna Cassidy. of the mill averaged from \$5,000 modern and attractive homes in Sarah Gallagher. In the primary day in observance of Columbus she was accompanied by Miss Anpects for the future. The chairs built the hotel, has a grandson, department during the same years Day, at Katie Brockert, Miss Katie Shafer, Miss Lettie Griffith, Miss Lib-The Union Hotel was built by bie Ruth, Miss Kate Cassidy, Miss sawmill on the bank of the river Mathias Munz, who conducted it Helen Bateman, Miss Anna Thorp,

Simon O'Connor and Eli Joslin

places were the Board of Decision. The the river to the canal built of place was built by Sterry Haw- Griffith, Willie Cannon, Libbie slabs. Ruth, Anna Throp, James Grif-Ruth, Anna Throp, James Griffith, Rosa Weidmer, Carrie Haas, Not shown in the picture, but Freddie LaQuay, Kittie Weidmer, Murray, Flora Hoffman. the settlement on this side of the Kittle Scanlon, Jay O'Connor,

West Leyden

West Leyden, Oct. 11-Mr. and Fred Weibel and family, house, and boiler room; all that Vernon White of Lee Center were can be seen of this once thriving Sunday guests in the home of Mr. marking where the tannery stood Mr. and Mrs. Karl Kappler and

tives in Syracuse on Sunday. and Mrs. A. Winfield getting out and hauling Trainor and son, Hugh are in ture in the center background; bark, and the others in the tan- New York City this week where was later torn down, each piece nery. About 25,000 hides were Supt. Trainor is attending a conlabeled and was moved to Otter tanned annually, valued at about vention of district superintendents a number of years ago and \$250,000. About 5,000 cords of of the New York State Associa-

the Morning Rarin' to Go

branch of the New York Central Railroad was opened with its line running several miles west of the section. Those persons familiar with Hawkinsville in

McGovern in Utica. Chester Freeman of Ithaca was Constableville, Oct. 11. - The a recent visit of her parents, Mr.

Mrs. Margaret Dolan has re-Mr. and Mrs. Henry B. Taylor tended the Cornell-Syracuse foot-Junior class: John Felshaw, ball game at Ithaca Saturday.

Virginia Gawlekoski, er is visiting her daughter, Miss

and family of Syracuse were week-end visitors of Emory G. vice-president; Benny Fields, sec-Allen and family. retary; Regina Hoffert, traesurer; nell; class adviser, Miss Mande-

George Bassett, treasurer; Ho- those to be in Ithaca Saturday Ryckman. Among the teachers in the Un- bert Crane, student council; class to attend the Cornell - Syracuse football game; she also visited in

Seventh grade: Dorothy Mur- Skaneateles. phy, president; Shirley LaFave, Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Golt of There will be no school in the Mrs. Elizabeth Fineout has re- and Mrs. Albert J. Miller.

Constableville, Oct. 11-A son Miss Helen Miller, student of their respective homes,

was born to Mr. and Mrs. George Rutledge of Highmarket at the Lewis County Hospital Friday, Mr. and Mrs. Edward McGov- JUNIOR RED CROSS ern and sons spent Sunday with the former's mother, Mrs. Philip

Serve for Year

STUDENT COUNCIL HAS

tic Club Reorganize

Holland Patent, Oct. 11- An ported to the Boonville School, student council; class adviser, Mr. and Mrs. George Spandt of auxiliary of the Junior Red Cross Patent made an excellent account ber, while the nine-month com-Oneida were Sunday guests of is being organized in Holland PatOneida were Sunday guests of is being organized in Holland PatSyracuse State Fair, winning the were sent to a convention held at first prize in the Dairy Herd Im- The State Labor Department re-Dr. and Mrs. Homer J. Knick- the John F. Hughes School in provement Contest for the sixth port on this industrial district years, Chris Zwahlen conducted a David Louis, treasurer; Ruth Tay- erbocker of Geneva called on Utica where they were told how straight year. friends in town during the week- to organize an auxiliary and

> Mr. and Mrs. Fred J. Lighthall ters were doing. Mis Wolcott, school nurse, suggested from each room be elected to a Slusarczyk. Mrs. Bertha Cavanaugh and Junior Red Cross Council, which son. Bernard have closed their would guide the auxiliary's actihouse and will spent the winter vities. The following members the Eigth grade: Martha Jane, pres- ter, Mr. and Mrs. Dunbar in New Charles McArdle; assistant chair-

> > Student Council Formed

year. Members are from the post-

graduate, senior, junior, and so-|Edwin Slusarzyk; vice-president.

made up the village at that time.

the distant past may recognize many buildings which

The representatives from each Ann Furlong; treasurer, Iric Mcclass are as follows: Elinor Cady, Quaid. post-graduate; June Emhof, Lesslie Dunn, senior class; Lloyd, Leonard MacAllister, junior adviser. The club plans to sponsor

New Unit Elects Officers to Officers of the council are: Dunn, vice-president; June Emhof, secretary; Elinor Cady, treasurer.

The purpose of the student council is to discuss what the students of the school like and dis-SELECTED NEW STAFF like and try to regulate their maxing the nine-month period with problems by making uniform laws substantial advances in Septem-Future Farmers and Dramaconcerning them. Problems ber, according to the business inbrought in by the teachers are dicators compiled by the Chamber considered. They have the power of Commerce. to grant charters to clubs.

Young Farmers Elect The young farmers of Holland 10 indices tabulated by the cham-Delegates Syracuse State Fair, winning

learned much of what other chap-dent, Fred Ruffrage; vice-president, Bob Dicker; treasurer, Roland Schallenburg; secretary, that two representatives Fritz Klossner; reporter, Edwin Sanzone Awarded 332 The club conducted a domestic

tree enterprise. All members of club were encouraged to ed Samuel with her son-in-law and daugh- were elected to offices: Chairman, bring a common tree in this area to the school. This tree will be usso, 313 Ann St., by a city court planted on the plot in the rear jury yesterday. Sanzone sued for man, Dorothy Hall; secretary, Miss Anne Dolan was among Betty Bagg; treasurer, Clarence of the school and labeled for the \$397.55, which he said was due benefit of new members coming him for fruits and vegetables sold into the club. This will serve as to Lorusso. The Senior-High Student Coun- a means of promoting tree idencil has been organized for the tification.

year and the potato production records of the estate of Philip was about 250 bushels to the Sanzone, father of the plaintiff acre. The club also renovated the these records showing the estate where they will spend the winter. week-end with her parents, Mr. old orchard in the rear of the was in litigation from 1931 to school.

na Klett who will visit there for at Strong Memorial Hospital in a membership of twenty students. city court. Special City Judge Rochester, spent the week-end at Election of officers was held with Francis J. Lawler was on the the following selected: President, bench.

Jane McIntosh; secretary, Bridget

The name of the club is "The Thespians". Idwal Jones is club Albert Bagg, sophomore either a movie or play in the near future and will hold regular meeting each Tuesday at 3 p. m.

Utica Business Records

Sharp Increase In 1939 Utica, Oct. 11-Utica business

In September, business forged ahead of August in eight of the showed that industrial employ-The following club officers have ment advanced 4 per cent in Sep-

By Jury in City Court A verdict of \$332.55 was award-Sanzone, 304 W. Walnut St., against Steve Lor-

One of the witnesses for the plaintiff was Surrogate E. How-The club plot was harvested this ard Ringrose, who 1939. This was the first time in



THRU THIS EACH SPECK OF FUEL MUST PASS THAT'S WHY YOU SAVE AND SAVE ON GAS !



automatic hot water WITH AMAZING NEW GAS HEATER INVENTION -

MAKES AN AUTOMATIC HEATER OUT OF YOUR PRESENT TANK

Did you ever count up the number of times a week you need hot water? We'll bet it runs into three figures. Well, here's a low-cost way to get automatic hot water.

We attach a thrifty little gas-saving heater right to your present water tank! You pay as low as \$1 a month, like rent, At our low rate, automatic gas water heating costs about the

same as makeshifts. When you decide to buy, there's a liberal allowance for rentals paid. You can't waste fuel with this kind of heater, and it's efficient enough to supply all the hot water the average family needs.

Phone today! Automatic gas water heaters can be rented from us, or purchased from your dealer on low Economy Purchase Plan terms.



Phone today

CENTRAL NEW YORK POWER CORP. NIAGARA CHUDSON

